
into depth in areas which commonly cause the most problems or raise the most

questions. As a result, this reference will also be extremely useful to sailors

serving as judges on a protest committee. The most useful appeals and cases

are quoted or referenced with the discussion of each rule; and each discussion

goes into sufficient depth to provide the answers or at least the guidelines to

resolve most protests or questions which come up. Both competitors and judges

will find the extensive use and reference to the appeals and cases very useful

and timesaving when they are either lodging a protest or trying to resolve one

in the hearing.

NOTE: At the time this book was published, World Sailing had not yet

completed their revisions of their Case Book; therefore the quotes from the

cases may not be 100% accurate. I expect that the substance of the interpre-

tations are accurate, but encourage you to double-check the actual cases. You

can find both the Appeals and the Case books at: ussailing.org/competition/

rules-offiating/appeals. 

I wish to point out that my opinions expressed in this book are my personal

opinions, and not those of the US Sailing Appeals Committee of which I am a

member.

It is nearly impossible to race sailboats without getting involved in some

rules-related situations, whether it’s in a crowded mark rounding, a protest

hearing, a measurement problem, or an appeal. It is my hope that this book,

which blends the rules and the appeals and cases together, will answer most of

your rules questions and expand your knowledge and awareness of what is in

the US Sailing Appeals and World Sailing Cases so that you can continue to

satisfy your own rules curiosity into the future, and feel confident that you in

fact do understand the rules yourself.

This book will be published every four years with the revisions of The Racing

Rules of Sailing. As it is my goal to provide a useful and accurate reference for

all sailors, I welcome your comments and suggestions concerning improvements

and inaccuracies. Please send them to my attention by May 1, 2028, or sooner

at: 239 Barberry Road, Southport, CT 06890.

And now, enjoy your understanding of the rules!

Good Sailing, 

Dave Perry
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way as she is entitled to by mark-room, but she nevertheless has contact with

an outside right-of-way boat or the outside right-of-way boat has to change

course to give her mark-room. In that case the inside keep-clear boat has broken

rule 10 (port/starboard) or rule 11 (windward/leeward), both rules of Part 2,

Section A. Or sometimes the outside boat does not give the inside boat enough

room and the inside boat is forced to touch the mark breaking rule 31 (Touching

a Mark). Rule 43.1(b) (Exoneration) is the rule that “exonerates” the inside

boat, meaning she is freed from being penalized for her breach.

R U L E  4 3  —  E X O N E R A T I O N  

R U L E  4 3 . 1 ( b )  

When a boat is sailing within the room or mark-room to which she is entitled

and, as a consequence of an incident with a boat required to give her that room

or mark-room, she breaks a rule of Section A of Part 2, rule 15, 16, or 31, she

is exonerated for her breach.

R U L E  4 3 . 2  

A boat exonerated for breaking a rule need not take a penalty and shall not be

penalized for breaking that rule. 

“Exonerated” means freed from having to take a penalty or otherwise being

penalized for breaking the rule. So if the boat ahead or the inside boat (AI) is

a keep-clear boat and she is sailing within the mark-room to which she is en-

titled (meaning she is rounding the mark in a seamanlike way) and she fouls

the other boat (BO) or touches the mark, BO breaks rule 18.2(a) (Giving

Mark-Room) and AI is exonerated for breaking a rule of Part 2, Section A or

rule 31 (Touching a Mark). And if AI is a right-of-way boat and while round-

ing the mark in a seamanlike way (i.e., within the mark-room she is entitled

to) she has to change course and she fails to give BO room to keep clear, BO

breaks rule 18.2(a) and AI is exonerated for breaking rule 16.1 (Changing

Course). 

This is a common sense rule. If you are entitled to room at the mark, you

should be able to sail your course to and around that mark without concern

for the boats required to give you mark-room. And those boats should be able

to easily anticipate the course you are going to sail around the mark and give

you the room you need to sail it.
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“Do I need to protest the outside boat so the protest committee can 

exonerate me?”

No. Rule 43.1(b) tells you that you are exonerated at the time of the incident.

But if someone protests the incident, the protest committee will decide if you

were entitled to exoneration; and if it decides you weren’t, then it will penalize

you (see rule 60.5(c), Protest Decisions).

Note that exoneration for breaking rule 16 (Changing Course) only applies

when rule 18 (Mark-Room) or 19 (Room at an Obstruction) applies. For 

instance, when boats are approaching a starting mark surrounded by water

(like a race committee boat) to start, rules 18 and 19 do not apply (preamble

to Section C). So both before and after the starting signal, rule 16.1 applies and

right-of-way boats must give keep clear boats room to keep clear anytime they

change course. The same applies at a windward mark when a starboard-tack

boat (S) is bearing away around the mark and a port-tack boat (P) is approach-

ing the mark. Because P is “approaching” the mark and S is “leaving” it, rule

18 does not apply (rule 18.1(a)(3)), and therefore rule 16.1 does apply to S;

i.e., S must be careful as she changes course near P (see discussion of rule 16).

Also note that rule 43.1(b) does not exonerate a boat for breaking rule 14

(Avoiding Contact), so all boats rounding marks must be careful to avoid any

contact, and particularly any contact that causes damage or injury.

“Can you explain how this all works at an offset mark or the mark at

the end of the first reaching leg on a trapezoid course?”

Sure. Commonly, fleets will sail on a short reaching leg after the windward

mark and then round an “offset” mark to begin the downwind leg where

boats will sail on both tacks, or they will round a mark at the end of the first

reaching leg onto a downwind leg on a trapezoid course. Let’s say Boats A

and B are reaching on starboard tack to leave the mark to port. A enters the

zone clear ahead of B, so B must give A mark-room under rule 18.2(a)(2)). A

wants to gybe and begin sailing the downwind leg on port tack. She knows

that she is not “protected” by rule 43.1(b) (Exoneration) if she gybes around

the mark because she does not need to gybe to begin sailing the next leg. 

A sails high so that she would pass the mark about a length to windward

of it. When A gets to the point where her proper course on port tack would

bring her close to the mark (within a couple of feet of it), she gybes to port
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WI is the windward/inside boat. Because she does not have 
right of way over LO, she is entitled only to enough space 

to sail to the mark in a seamanlike way, as opposed to 
the space she might like to take in order to make a 

tactical “swing wide-cut close” type of rounding. 
WI is taking too much room while sailing to 

the mark, and by hitting the leeward boat 
she breaks rules 11 and 14(a), and is 

not exonerated by rule 43.1(b).

tack. Because mark-room includes room for A “to sail to the mark” when her

proper course is to sail close to it, A is sailing within the mark-room to which

she is entitled, and A is exonerated by rule 43.1(b) if she breaks rule 10 (port/

starboard); i.e., she is “protected” by rule 43.1(b). 

However, if A had stayed on starboard tack and sailed past the point where

her proper course on port tack would have brought her close to the mark (call

it the “port layline” to the mark), she is no longer entitled to room to sail to

the mark, meaning that if she gybed to port tack after that point, she would

be required to keep clear of B under rule 10 (On Opposite Tacks).

Next, the question of how much room an outside boat must give to an inside

boat depends on whether the outside boat is a “right-of-way” boat or a “keep-

clear” boat.

W H E N  T H E  O U T S I D E  B O A T  I S  T H E  R I G H T - O F - W A Y  B O A T :

When the outside boat has the right-of-way, she only needs to give the inside

boat mark-room, and no more space than that (see the discussion above).

Note that rule 18.2(a) does not shift the right of way from the outside/right-

of-way boat to the inside/keep-clear boat. But clearly the obligation to give

mark-room conflicts with rule 10 (On Opposite Tacks) and rule 11 (On the

Same Tack, Overlapped) in Section A. In other words, when a starboard-tack


